CURRICULUM VITÆ

CLÁUDIA Susana Soares DE FREITAS

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	1
1. IDENTIFICATION	2
2. ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENTS	3
2.1. Academic degrees	3
2.2. Awards and grants	4
3. PROFESSIONAL POSTS	
4. TEACHING ACTIVITIES	
4.1. Teaching at the Institute of Public Health of the University of Porto	
4.2. Teaching at the Faculty of Psychology of the University of Seville	6
4.3. Other teaching activities	6
5. RESEARCH EXPERIENCE	9
5.1. Institutional framework of scientific activities	9
5.2. Principal research areas	9
5.3. Participation in research projects	9
5.3.1. International Projects	
5.3.2. National Projects	
5.4. International networks 6. SUPERVISION AND ADVISORY RESPONSABILITIES	
6.1. PhD Theses	
6.2. Master Dissertations	
6.3. Visiting scholars and mobility fellows	
7. PARTICIPATION IN JURIES	
8. EXTRAMURAL PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES	
8.1. Peer-review for scientific journals	
8.2. Abstracts evaluation	
9. PUBLICATIONS	
9.1. Books	
9.2. Book chapters	
9.3. Papers in international journals	
9.4. Papers in national journals	
9.5. Journal editorials	
9.6. Conference proceedings/Book of abstracts	19

9.7. Scientific reports	21
10. PARTICIPATION IN SCIENCE EVENTS	
10.1. Organization of science events	22
10.2. Invited oral presentations	23
10.3. International oral presentations	
10.4. Poster presentations	
10.6. National oral presentations	

INTRODUCTION

Cláudia de Freitas is Associate Researcher at the Institute of Public Health of the University of Porto (ISPUP). Between 2016 and 2017, she was a Postdoctoral Research Fellow at ISPUP and at the Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology of the University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), and before that she held a Postdoctoral Research Fellowship at ISCTE-IUL (2012-2016). Both Postodoctoral Fellowships were obtained through participation in competitive calls launched by the Foundation for Science and Technology. In 2015, De Freitas was a visiting scholar at the London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine. She holds a degree in Clinical Psychology from the University of Coimbra (2001), a Master of Arts in Migration and Ethnic Studies from the University of Amsterdam (2004) and a PhD in Social Sciences from Utrecht University (2011).

De Freitas is Invited Assistant Professor at the Faculty of Medicine of the University of Porto, where she lectures in the PhD Programme in Public Health and in the Master in Public Health. She also teaches on the Specialisation Course in Public Health for medical doctors specialising in Public Health at ISPUP and she is a guest lecturer at the University of Seville, where she teaches in the Master in International Migration, Health and Wellbeing.

De Freitas has participated in several national and international research projects and networks funded by the Foundation for Science and Technology, the European Comission, the European Refugee Fund and the Open Society Foundations. Her main research fields are public and patient participation in health decision-making and migration and health. She is especially interested in the study of lay citizens' involvement in the governance of health policy, care and research aimed at adapting health care systems to diversity. Her scientific work has been awarded several prizes by the Norwegian Medical Council, ISCTE-IUL and the University of Amsterdam.

1. IDENTIFICATION

Name: Cláudia Susana Soares de Freitas

Data de nascimento: 12 de Maio de 1978

City of birth: Porto

Nationality: Portuguese

Citizen card number: 11239908

Fiscal number: 222186364

Residencial address: Rua de Vilar, 29, 4050-626 Porto

Institutional addres: Instituto de Saúde Pública da Universidade do Porto

Rua das Taipas, n.º 135-139, 4050-600 Porto

Mobile number: (+351) 96 9746 012

Telefone: (+351) 222 061 820

Fax: (+351) 222 061 821

Correio eletrónico: claudia.defreitas@ispup.up.pt

Site: http://www.degois.pt/visualizador/curriculum.jsp?key=2058035088929203

2. ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENTS

2.1. Academic degrees

2011 In December 2011 obtained the degree of Doctor from Utrecht University by publicly defending her PhD thesis entitled *Participation in mental health care by ethnic minority users: Case studies from the Netherlands and Brazil*, which was approved by unanimity.

- In January 2004 obtained the degree of Master in Arts in Migration and Ethnic Studies from the University of Amsterdam by presenting the MA dissertation entitled *Seeking for the* "good doctor" when health knows no borders. Cape Verdeans perceptions of health care providers in the Netherlands, which was approved With Hounours (classification of Exellent, 8.2/10).
- In July 2001 obtained the degree of Licenciate in Psychology Clinical Psychology from the University of Coimbra, including an *Internship in Family and Couple Therapy* evaluated with the classification of Very Good (18/20) and a Socrates-Erasmus Student Mobility Programme for one academic year at Utrecht University in the Netherlands. The degree was evaluated with the final classification of Good (15/20).

2.2. Awards and grants

2018 ISCTE-IUL Scientific Award.

Best Poster Prize awarded by the National Comission on Baby Friendly Hospitals Initiative/UNICEF, authored by Cosima Lisi, Cláudia de Freitas and Henrique Barros.

2017 ISCTE-IUL Scientific Award.

Best Poster Prize awarded by the Norwegian Medical Council for the work entitled "Sensitivity to diversity in public and patient involvement policy: A comparison of 40 countries", presented at the EUPHA's 6th European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health, authored by Cláudia de Freitas, David Ingleby and Manuel García-Ramírez.

2016 ISCTE-IUL Scientific Award.

Short-term Scientifc Mission Grant awarded by COST Action IS1103 to carry out a visitorship at the London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine to develop work with Doctor Alicia Renedo on User involvement policy in European countries.

2008 Master Dissertation selected as "one of the most remarkable theses written in ISHSS history", awarded by the International School of Humanities and Social Sciences of the University of Amsterdam.

1999 Socrates-Erasmus Student Mobility Grant awarded by the European Comission.

3. PROFESSIONAL POSTS

2018-2023	Associate Researcher at the Institute of Public Health, University of Porto.
2017-present	Invited Assistant Professor at Faculty of Medicine, University of Porto.
2016-2017	FCT Postdoctoral Research Fellow at the Institute of Public Health, University of Porto and at the Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology, University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), between 1 September 2016 and 31 December 2017.
2017	Consultant at Santhera Pharmaceuticals, between 1 March and 31 July 2017.
2016-2018	Research consultant for Faculty of Psychology, University of Seville, between 1 November 2016 and 31 October 2018.
2012-2016	FCT Postdoctoral Research Fellow at the Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology, University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), between 1 February 2012 and 31 August 2016.
2006-2007	Research coordinator at the mental health care service RIAGG Rijnmond, between 1 April 2006 and 30 February 2007.
2005-2006	Research assistant at the Faculty of Social and Behavioural Sciences, Utrecht University, between 1 December 2005 and 30 November 2006.
2002-2003	Research assistant at the Faculty of Social and Behavioural Sciences, Utrecht University, between 1 March 2002 and 30 April 2003.

4. TEACHING ACTIVITIES

4.1. Teaching at the Faculty of Medicine of the University of Porto

Year Disciplines and courses

2018-Present Advanced Methods in Qualitative Data Analysis, PhD Programme in Public Health

2018-Present *Qualitative Health Research Methods*, Master in Public Health

2017-Present Health Systems Administration, PhD Programme in Public Health

2017-Present Administration and Health Policy, Master in Public Health

4.2. Teaching at the Institute of Public Health of University of Porto

2015-Present *Sociology of Health*, Specialisation Course in Public Health

4.3 Faculty of Psychology of the University of Seville

Year Disciplines and courses

2014-Present Migration and diversity in Global Europe: the role of health and wellbeing, Master in International Migration, Health and Wellbeing: Intervention Models and Strategies

4.3. Other teaching activities

2017 Lecturer of the module "Data collection: interviews, focus groups and think tanks", Course: Qualitative Research Methods, PhD programme in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, April 2017, 2 hours.

- 2017 Lecturer of the module "Data collection: interviews, focus groups and think tanks", Course: Qualitative Research Methods, Master in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, April 2017, 2 hours.
- 2017 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health policy, care and research", Course: Social Studies in Public Health, PhD in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, March 2017, 2 hours.
- 2017 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health policy, care and

research", Course: Health and Society, Master in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, March 2017, 2 hours.

- Seminar "Public and patient involvement in assessing needs and developing social innovations for rare diseases: the case of CDG", Educational Program of Excellence on Congenital Disorders of Glycosylation, Portuguese Association for CDG/ Portuguese Medical Council, February 2017, 1 hour.
- Lecturer of the module "Diversity in health: migrant involvement in healthcare governance and community interventions", PhD in Global Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, November 2016, 2 hours.
- 2016 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Social Studies in Public Health, PhD in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2016, 2 hours.
- 2016 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Health and Society, Master in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2016, 2 hours.
- 2015 Lecturer at the Intensive Course on Qualitative Health Research Methods, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, September 2015, 10 hours (with Susana Silva, Elisabete Alves, Sílvia Fraa and Mariana Amorim).
- 2015 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Social Studies in Public Health, PhD in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2015, 2 hours.
- 2015 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Health and Society, Master in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2016, 2 hours.
- Open Lecture "Inequalities in health: what citizen participation can change?" Licenciate degree in Sociology, Institute of Social Sciences, University of Minho, October 2014, 2 hours.
- Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Social Studies in Public Health, PhD in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2014, 2 hours.

2014 Lecturer of the module "Public and patient participation in health", Course: Health and Society, Master in Public Health, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2016, 2 hours.

Seminar "Citizen participation in mental health in Brazil – fieldwork experiences", Summer School Latin America Today: Research in Latin America, Casa da América Latina/ISCTE-IUL, May 2012, 2 hours.

5. RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

5.1. Institutional framework of scientific activities

Integrated member of the Research Unit in Epidemiology (EPIUnit) – Institute of Public Health, University of Porto. Associate member of the Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology – University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE/IUL).

5.2. Principal research areas

Social Studies of Science and Technology and Migration and Health, with special interest and scientifc work on public and patient involvement in health decision-making in connection to reproductive technologies, rare diseases, neonatal intensive care units and mental health, diversity sensitivity in health care policy and services for migrants and ethnic minorities, health equity and social justice.

5.3. Participation in research projects

5.3.1. International Projects

- 1. **2016-2018**: Research team member of the project *Provision of training for first-line professionals and law enforcement officers working at local level with migrants and refugees and training of trainers*. Principal Contractor: GIZ International Services. Principal investigator: Roumyana Petrova-Benedict. Funde by: CHAFEA, European Comission.
- 2. **2016-2018**: Research team member of the project *A multi-level advocacy framework to implement the National Roma Integration Strategy (NRIS) health component in at-risk local contexts in Spain*. Principal contractor: University of Seville. Principal investigator: Manuel García-Ramirez. Funded by: Open Society Foundations.
- 3. **2014-2015:** Research team member of the project Fostering health provision for migrants, the Roma, and other vulnerable groups (Equi-Health): addition of health strand to the Migration Integration Policy Index (MIPEX). Principal contractor: University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL). Principal investigator: Beatriz Padilla. Funded by International Organization for Migration and European Commission DG SANTE.

4. **2006-2007:** Research lead of the project *User participation in mental health care in Suriname: the implementation of a client council.* Principal contractor: Utrecht University. Principal investigator: Cláudia de Freitas. Funded by funded by RIAGG Rijnmond Cliëntenraad.

- 5. **2006:** Research team member of the project '*Transversões' Mental health, deinstitutionalization and psychosocial approaches*. Principal contractor: Federal University of Rio de Janeiro. Principal investigator: Eduardo Mourão Vasconcelos.
- 6. **2005-2006:** Research team member of the project *European survey on migrant health*. Principal contractor: Utrecht University. Principal investigator: David Ingleby. Funded by International Organization for Migration.
- 7. **2002-2003**: Research assistant in the project *Good practice in mental health and social care for refugees and asylum seekers*. Principal contractor: Utrecht University. Principal investigator: David Ingleby. Funded by European Refugee Fund.

5.3.2. National Projects

- 1. **2018-2021:** Research lead of the project *Public and patient involvement in health data governance: a people-centred approach to data protection in genetic diseases.* Principal Contractor: Institute of Public Health of the University of Porto. Principal Investigator: Cláudia de Freitas. Funded by: Foundation for Science and Technology.
- 2. 2018-2021: Research team member of the project When do health inequalities start? Understanding of childhood social adversity on health trajectories from birth to early adolescence. Principal Contractor: Institute of Public Health of the University of Porto. Principal Investigator: Sílvia Fraga. Funded by: Foundation for Science and Technology.
- 3. **2018:** Research lead of the project *Making Asylum System Work: a case study of policy implementation in Portugal.* Principal Contractor: Institute of Public Health of the University of Porto. Principal Investigator: Cláudia de Freitas. Fnded by: Calouste de Gulbenkian Foundation.
- 4. **2016-2019:** Postdoctoral research project entitled *Public engagement in reproductive technologies: citizen-centred care, research and innovation.* Host institutions: Institute of Public Health of University of Porto and Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology of University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL). Funded by Foundation for Science and Technology (FCT).
- 5. **2016-2019**: Research team member of the project *Bionetworking and citizenship in gamete donation* (ENGAgED). Principal contractor: Institute of Public Heal of University of Porto.

Principal investigator: Susana Silva. Funded by Foundation for Science and Technology (FCT).

6. **2012-2016:** Postdoctoral research project entitled *Citizen participation in health governance in Portugal: practice-based recommendations for policy and action.* Host institutions: Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology of University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL) and Institute of Public Health of University of Porto. Funded by Foundation for Science and Technology (FCT).

7. **2012-2014:** Research team member of the project *Health and citizenship: Gaps and needs in intercultural health care for immigrant mothers.* Principal contractor: University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL). Principal investigator: Beatriz Padilla. Funded by Foundation for Science and Technology (FCT).

5.4. International networks

- 1. **2011-2016**: Member of the COST Action IS1103 *Adapting European health systems to diversity* (ADAPT). Coordinated by David Ingleby. Funded by European Science Foundation and European Commission.
- 2. **2005-2009**: Member of the *Network of Excellence on International Migration, Integration and Social Cohesion (IMISCOE)*. Coordinated by Rinus Penninx. Funded by the European Union 6th Framework Programme.

6. SUPERVISION AND ADVISORY RESPONSABILITIES

6.1. PhD Theses

1. Supervisor of Ph.D Thesis in Global Public Health *Breastfeeding, industry marketing and conflict of interest in the era of globalization* (PD/BD/128082/2016), by Cosima Lisi, Faculty of Medicine of University of Porto; National School of Public Health, Nova University of Lisbon.

- 2. Co-supervisor of the Ph.D Thesis in *Public Health Gamete donation, citizenship and bionetworking in public banks* (SFRH/BD/111686/2015), by Inês Baía, Faculty of Medicine of the University of Porto.
- 3. Co-supervisor of the Ph.D Thesis in Public Health *Public views of gamete and embryo donation* for reproductive and research purposes: rethinking citizen science (SFRH/BD/122603/2016), by Sandra Pinto da Silva, Faculty of Medicine of thevUniversity of Porto.

6.2. Master Dissertations

Ongoing

- 1. Supervisor of the Master Dissertation in Public Health *The involvement of migrant women in perinatal care*, by Janka Massag, Faculty of Medicine of the University of Porto.
- 2. Supervisor of the Master Dissertation in Public Health *People-centred policy for data governance in gamete donation: access to information by gamete donors and recipients*, by Tiago Mia, Faculty of Medicine of the University of Porto.

Completed

- 1. Supervisior of the Master Dissertation in Public Health *Enabling factors of a Community Health Worker Programme in the Fiji Islands*, by Jyotishna Mudaliar, Fiji National University (under the Erasmus Mundus exchange programme).
- 2. Co-supervisor of the Master Dissertation in International Migration, Health and Well-being *The impact of the financial crisis and austerity policies in the health and access to health care of migrants in four Southern European countries: a scoping review*, by Nuno Jordão. Faculty of Psychology of University of Seville. Grade: 9/10.

6.3. Visiting scholars and mobility fellows

1. Advisor of the COST Action IS1103 Short-term Scientific Mission *A community-based approach to Roma health mediation* by Marta Escobar Ballesta from the University of Seville, at Institute of Public Health of University of Porto.

2. Host of visiting scholar Virginia Paloma from the University of Seville to develop work on the field of Migration and Health, at Institute of Public Health of University of Porto.

7. PARTICIPATION IN JURIES

7.2. PhD Thesis

1. **2018:** Member of the jury in the defense leading to the PhD in Public Health by Liliana Abreu, with the Thesis *Distributed health literacy among people living with chronic conditions*, Faculty of Medicine, University of Porto, 10th September.

7.1. Master Dissertations

1. **2017**: Member of the jury and external examiner in the defense leading to the Master Degree in European Policies, Development and Socioterritorial Cohesion by Ana Lúcia Vitorino Cardoso, with the Dissertation *Participation of civil society in European Union (EU) decision-making and agenda-setting: role of patient organisations on EU health policy*, Institute of Geography and Territorial Planning, University of Lisbon, 24th of March.

8. EXTRAMURAL PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES

8.1. Peer-review for scientific journals

- Qualitative Health Research (2014, 2015, 2017, 2018)
- Health Research Policy and Systems (2018)
- BMC Public Health (2018)
- Journal of Ethnic and Migration Studies (2018)
- Social Science & Medicine (2015, 2016, 2017)
- Globalization and Health (2016)
- Public Health Panorama (2016)
- Journal of Disease and Global Health (2016)
- Polish Political Science Yearbook (2016)
- Health Promotion International (2014, 2015)
- Health Expectations (2015)
- Global Journal of Community Psychology Practice (2015)
- Psychosocial Intervention (2012, 2014)
- Migrações (2014, 2018)
- Journal of Immigrant and Minority Health (2012)
- Global Networks (2011)

8.2. Abstracts evaluation

- European Sociological Association's Research Network on Sociology of Health and Illness Mid-Term Conference – Session Patient-centred care and public involvement in health technologies, Lisbon, Portugal, 19-21 May 2016.

9. PUBLICATIONS

9.1. Books

1. **De Freitas C** (2011), Participation in mental health care by ethnic minority users: Case studies from the Netherlands and Brazil. Ridderkerk: Ridderprint.

- 2. Vasconcelos EM, Klein A, **De Freitas C** & Fonseca ML (eds.) (2008), *Abordagens psicossociais:* v. II: Reforma psiquiátrica e saúde mental na ótica da cultura e das lutas populares. São Paulo: Huticec.
- 3. **De Freitas C** (2006), Em busca de um bom médico quando a "saúde não tem fronteiras". Percepções dos Cabo-verdianos sobre profissionais de saúde na Holanda. Lisbon: Alto Comissariado para a Imigração e Minorias Étnicas.

9.2. Book chapters

- 1. Silva, S Samorinha C, Baia I, Silva SP, **De Freitas C** (2017), "Genes, cidadania e participação na doação de gâmetas", in Machado H (eds.), *Genética e Cidadania*. Porto: Edições Afrontamento, pp. 221-240.
- 2. Samorinha C, Renedo A, **De Freitas** C, Silva S (2017), "Cuidados centrados no paciente: O caso da investigação com recurso a embriões", in Machado H (eds.), *Genética e Cidadania*. Porto: Edições Afrontamento, pp. 151-170.
- 3. **De Freitas C** (2016), 'Cape Verdean migrants in the Netherlands: socio-demographic profile, identity and integration', in Évora I (ed.), *Diáspora Cabo-verdiana: Temas em debate*, Lisboa: CESA-ISEG, pp. 142-171.
- 4. Silva S, Alves BR, Machado H, Samorinha C, De Freitas C (2016), "Narrativas em torno da utilização de embriões de origem humana na investigação científica: saúde, ética e cidadania", in Fonseca C, Rohden F, Machado PS, Paim HS (eds.), Antropologia da Ciência e da Tecnologia: dobras reflexivas. Porto Alegre: Editora Sulina, pp. 207-234.
- 5. **De Freitas C** (2015), "Participação em saúde: a vez e a voz dos cidadãos?", in Carapinheiro G & Correia T (eds.), *Novos temas de saúde, novas questões sociais*, Lisbon: Editora Mundos Sociais, pp. 187-194.
- 6. **De Freitas C** (2014) "Equidade, diversidade e participação dos cidadãos em saúde", in Padilla B, Hérnandez-Plaza S, Rodrigues E & Ortiz A (eds.), *Saúde e cidadania: equidade nos cuidados de saúde materno-infantil em tempos de crise*, Braga: CICS Universidade do Minho, pp. 141-152.

7. Padilla B, Portugal R, Ingleby D, **De Freitas C** & Lebas J (2009), "Health and migration in the European Union: Good practices", in Fernandes A & Miguel JP (eds.), *Health and migration in the European Union: Better health for all in an inclusive society*, Lisbon: Instituto Nacional de Saúde Doutor Ricardo Jorge, pp. 101-115.

- 8. **De Freitas C** (2008), "A participação e preparação prévia do usuário para situações de crise mental: a experiência holandesa do plano/cartão de crise e desafios para a sua apropriação no contexto brasileiro", in Vasconcelos EM, Klein A, De Freitas C & Fonseca ML (eds.), *Abordagens psicossociais: Vol II: Reforma Psiquiátrica e saúde mental na ótica da cultura e das lutas populares*, São Paulo: Huticec, pp. 142-170.
- 9. Beijers H & **De Freitas** C (2008), "Cape Verdeans' pathways to health: local problems, transnational solutions", in Batalha L & Carling J (eds.), *Transnational archipelago: Perspectives on Cape Verdean migration and diaspora*, Amsterdam: Amsterdam University Press, pp. 237-254.
- 10. De Freitas C (2008), "Do silêncio à participação: cabo-verdianos e saúde mental na Holanda", in Comunidade(s) cabo-verdiana(s): as múltiplas faces da imigração cabo-verdiana, in Góis P (ed), 207 228. Lisboa: Observatório da Imigração, Alto Comissariado para a Imigração e Diálogo Intercultural, pp. 207-228.
- 11. Ingleby D, Chimienti M, Hatziprokopiou P, Ormond M & **De Freitas C** (2005), "The role of health in integration", in Fonseca L & Malheiros J (eds.), *Social integration and mobility:* education, housing and health IMISCOE Cluster B5 State of the Art Report, Estudos para o Planeamento Regional e Urbano n. 67, Lisbon: Centro de Estudos Geográficos, pp.89-119.

9.3. Papers in international journals

- Escobar-Ballesta M, García-Ramírez, M, De Freitas C (2018), "Taking stock of Roma health policies: Lesons for health governance", *Health Policy*, 122(4): 444-451. doi:10.1016/j.healthpol.2018.02.009
- 2. Jordão N, De Freitas C, García-Ramírez M (2018) Efeitos da crise económica e das políticas de austeriadade na saúde e no acesso aos cuidados de saúde da população migrante em países do sul da Europa: revisão scoping, RHEMU: Revista Interdisciplinar de Mobilidade Humana, 26(54): 213-230. doi: 10.1590/1980-85852503880005411
- 3. Silva SP, **De Freitas C**, Baía I, Samorinha C, Machado H, Silva S (2018) Doação de gamteas: questões sociais e éticas (não) respondidas em Portugal, *Cadernos de Saúde Pública*, s/n, 0-20.
- Silva S, Samorinha C, Alves BR, **D Freitas C**, Machado H (2017), "Consentir na criopreservação de embriões: percepção de casais usuários de medicina da reprodução", *Interface Comunicação, Saúde, Educação*, 21(61):435-448. doi: 10.1590/1807-57622015.0841

Legido-Quigley H, Karanikolos M, Hernandez-Plaza S, De Freitas C, Bernardo L, Padilla B, Machado, RS, Diaz-Ordaz K, Stuckler D & McKee M (2016), "Effects of the financial crisis and Troika austerity measures on health and health care access in Portugal", *Health Policy*, 120:833-839. doi: 10.1016/j.healthpol.2016.04.009

- 6. Baía I, Amorim M, Silva S, Kelly-Irving M, **De Freitas C**, Alves E (2016), "Parenting very preterm infants and stress in Neonatal Intensive Care Units", *Early Human Development*, 101: 3-9. doi: 10.1016/j.earlhumdev.2016.04.001
- 7. Samorinha C, Severo M, Machado H, Figueiredo B, **De Freitas C**, Silva S (2016), "Couple's willingness to donate embryos for research: a longitudinal study", *Acta Obstetricia et Gynecologica Scandinavica*, 95(8):912-919. doi: 10.1111/aogs.12900
- 8. **De Freitas** C & Martin G (2015) "Inclusive public participation in health: policy, practice and theoretical contributions to promote the involvement of marginalised groups in healthcare", *Social Science and Medicine*, 135: 31-39. doi: 10.1016/j.socscimed.2015.04.019
- 9. **De Freitas C** (2015), "Aiming for inclusion: a case study of motivations for involvement in mental healthcare governance by ethnic minority users", *Health Expectations*, 18(5): 1093-1104. doi: 10.1111/hex.12082
- 10. **De Freitas C**, García-Ramírez M, Aambø A & Buttigieg S (2014), "Transforming health policies through migrant user involvement: Lessons learnt from three European countries", *Psychosocial Intervention*, 23(2): 105-113. doi: 10.1016/j.psi.2014.07.007
- 11. **De Freitas C** & Mendes Á (2013), "A resiliência da saúde migrante: itinerários terapêuticos plurais e transnacionais", *Revista Interdisciplinar de Mobilidade Humana*, 21(40): 69-92.
- 12. **De Freitas C** (2005), "Health has no borders": Cape Verdean immigrants in the Netherlands and the transnational quest for health care across Europe', *International Journal of Migration, Health and Social Care*, 1 (1): 19-36. doi: 10.1108/17479894200500004

9.4. Papers in national journals

Padilla B, Hernández-Plaza S, De Freitas C, Masanet E, Santinho C, Ortiz A (2013), "Cidadania e diversidade em saúde: necessidades e estratégias de promoção de equidade nos cuidados", Saúde & Tecnologia, Suplemento:57-64.

9.5. Journal editorials

1. **De Freitas C** (2017), "Public and patient participation in health policy, care and research", *Porto Biomedical Journal*, 2(2):31-32. doi: 10.1016/j.pbj.2017.01.001

2. García-Ramírez M, Bálcazar F & **De Freitas C** (2014), "Community psychology contributions to the study of social inequalities, well-being and social justice", *Psychosocial Intervention*, 23(2):79-81. doi: 10.1016/j.psi.2014.07.009

9.6. Conference proceedings/Book of abstracts

- 1. **De Freitas C**, Ingleby D, MacFarlane A (2018) Migrant and ethnic minority participation in health decision-making: achieving inclusive participatory spaces, 1^{rst} World Congress on Migration, Ethnicity, Race and Health, *European Journal of Public Health*, 28 (supple 1), cky049. 023
- 2. Escobar-Ballesta M, García-Ramírez M, **De Freitas C** (2018) Roma health governance in Spain: an assessment of policy implementation, 1^{rst} World Congress on Migration, Ethnicity, Race and Health, *European Journal of Public Health*, 28 (supple_1)
- 3. Miranda D, **De Freitas C**, Duran I, García-Ramírez M (2018) A multi-level advocacy framework for Roma health: a scoping review, 1^{rst} World Congress on Migration, Ethnicity, Race and Health, *European Journal of Public Health*, 28 (suppl 1), cky048.114
- 4. **De Freitas C**, Silva S (2018) Innovative approaches to ethical and methodological challenges in health research, 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry Second Edition Nomadic Inquiry Abstracts Book, Leuven.
- 5. Amorim M, Alves E, **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Silva S (2018) Interviewing parental couples together: Interaction between gender and occupation beyond child's birth weight, 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry Second Edition Nomadic Inquiry Abstracts Book, Leuven.
- 6. Samorinha C, Baía I, **De Freitas** C, Silva S (2018) Contents about gamete donation on IVF clinics websites: how to assure that the information provided meets people's needs?, 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry Second Edition Nomadic Inquiry Abstracts Book, Leuven.
- 7. Silva SP, Abreu L, **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Baía I, Silva S (2018) Ethical and methodological dilemmas in mixed-methods research: an empirically-based perspective about gamete donation, 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry Second Edition Nomadic Inquiry Abstracts Book, Leuven.
- 8. Abreu L, Silva SP, **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Baía I, Silva S (2018) Anonymized donors and recipients' intersections in the same space: ethical and practical considerations, 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry Second Edition Nomadic Inquiry Abstracts Book, Leuven.
- 9. **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Lisi C and Silva S (2017) Public involvement in health policymaking: an exclusive practice? *Book of Abstracts of the International Socological Association's*

- International Conference Democracy and participation in the 21rst century, Lisbon.
- 10. Silva SP, **De Freitas** C and Silva S (2017) Ethical and methodlogical challenges to public engagement in research about anonymous gamete donation: rethinking citizen science. *Book of Abstracts of the International Sociological Association's International Conference Democracy and participation in the 21rst century, Lisbon.*
- 11. **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Ingleby D & García-Ramírez M (2016), "Migrant and ethnic minority involvement in healthcare policy and community interventions: a scoping review", *Book of Abstracts EUPHA's 6th European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health*, http://eupha-migranthealthconference.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/abstract-book-eupha2016.pdf
- 12.**De Freitas C,** Ingleby D & García-Ramírez M (2016), "Sensitivity to diversity in public and patient involvement policy: A comparison of 40 countries", *Book of Abstracts EUPHA's 6th European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health*. http://eupha-migranthealthconference.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/06/abstract-book-eupha2016.pdf
- 13. Samorinha C, Machado H, **De Freitas C**, Amorim M & Silva S (2016), "A public health approach to patient-centredness in embryo research", *European Journal of Public Health*, 26 (Suppl 1):33. http://eurpub.oxfordjournals.org/content/26/suppl_1/ckw164.073
- 14. Baía I, Amorim M, Silva S, **De Freitas C** & Alves E (2015), "Parenting very preterm infants and stress in Neonatal Intensive Care Units", *European Journal of Public Health*, 25(suppl 3): 122.
- 15. Ferreira V, **De Freitas C**, Videira P, Krasnewich D, Morava E, Silva S & Jaeken J (2015), "Needs and opprotunities from Congenital Disorders of Glycosylation: Results from the first world think tanks, RE(ACT) International Congress on Research on Rare and Orphan Diseases, *Molecular Syndromology*, 6: 327.
- 16.**De Freitas C,** Ingleby D & García-Ramírez M (2014), "Levering change: barriers to and facilitators of migrant user involvement in healthcare governance", *Book of Abstracts 5th EUPHA European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health*.
- 17. **De Freitas C** (2014), "Do stigma à inclusão: Motivações para a participação cidadã na promoção da daúde mental", *Actas do VIII Congresso Português de Sociologia*.
- 18.**De Freitas C** (2013), "Fostering inclusive citizen participation in health: the engagement of minority groups in healthcare governance", *Book of Abstracts European Sociological Association* 11th Conference Crisis, Critique and Change.
- 19. **De Freitas C** (2013), "Beyond the usual suspects: increasing the representation of disadvantaged minorities in health participatory spaces in times of crisis", *Book of Abstracts European Sociological Association 11th Conference Crisis, Critique and Change.*
- 20. **De Freitas** C (2005), "Health has no borders': Cape Verdean immigrants in the Netherlands and the transnational quest for health care across Europe", *Proceedings of the International*

Conference Cape Verdean Migration and Diaspora.

9.7. Scientific reports

1. Padilla B, Hernandez-Plaza S & **De Freitas C** (2017), *Migrant Integration Policy Index - Health Strand: Country Report Portugal*, Brussels: International Organization for Migration.

- 2. Portugal R, Padilla B, Ingleby D, **De Freitas C,** Lebas J & Pereira Miguel, J (2007), *Good practices on health and migration in the EU*, Report commissioned by the Portuguese Presidency of the Council of the European Union Ministry of Health.
- 3. Watters C, Ingleby D, Bernal M, **De Freitas C**, De Ruuk N, Van Leeuwen M, Venkatesan S (2003), *Good practices in mental health and social care for asylum seekers and refugees*. Final Report of project for the European Commission. Brussels: European Refugee Fund.
- 4. **De Freitas** C (2003), "Identification study. Report on Portugal". In Watters C, Ingleby D, Bernal M, De Freitas C, De Ruuk N, Van Leeuwen M, Venkatesan S (eds) *Good practices in mental health and social care for asylum seekers and refugees*. Final Report of project for the European Commission. Brussels: European Refugee Fund.

10. PARTICIPATION IN SCIENCE EVENTS

10.1. Organization of science events

1. Coorganizer of the session "Migrant and ethnic minority participation in health decision-making: achieving inclusive participatory spaces", 1^{rst} World Congress on Migration, Ethnicity, Race and Health 17-19 May 2018 (with Anne McFarlane and David Ingleby).

- 2. Coorganizer of the session "Innovative approaches to ethical and methodological challenges in health research", 2nd European Congress of Qualitative Inquiry, Leuven, 6-9 February 2018 (with Susana Silva).
- 3. Coorganizer of the session "Patient-centered care and public involvement in health technologies", European Sociological Association Mid-Term Conference *New directions in health care work and organisations*, Nova Lisbon University, 18-20 May 2016 (with Alicia Renedo and Susana Silva).
- 4. Organizer of the Seminar *Health and illness: sociology and public health in dialogue* by Graça Carapinheiro, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, May 2016.
- 5. Organizer of the COST Action IS1103 ADAPT meeting *Participatory approaches to health among groups in vulnerable situations*, Institute of Public Health, University of Porto, April 2015.
- 6. Organizer of the COST Action IS1103 meeting *Integrating migrant and ethnic minority users'* perspectives in health care: strategies, measurement and impact, Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology, University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), October 2014.
- 7. Coorganizer of the Second Internacional Workshop *Health and citizenshhip: equity maternal health care services in times of crises,* Interdisciplinary Centre of Social Sciences, University of Minho, October 2014 (with Beatriz Padilla, Sonia Hernandez-Plaza, Alejandra Ortiz and Erika Masanet).
- 8. Coorganizer of the Seminar *Inequalities, diversity and health in times of crisis, Designaldade*, Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology, University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), May 2014 (with Beatriz Padilla, Sonia Hernandez-Plaza, Alejandra Ortiz and Erika Masanet).
- 9. Coorganizer of the *COST Action IS1103 ADAPT meeting: User involvement*, School of Nursing, University of Seville, September 2013 (with Manuel García-Ramírez).
- 10. Coorganizer of the COST Action IS1103 ADAPT meeting: Strategic planning meeting for subproject 8 (User Involvement): Bringing migrant and ethnic minority users' perspectives into health policy and health care, Centre for Research and Studies in Sociology, University Institute of Lisbon (ISCTE-IUL), October 2012 (with Beatriz Padilla and Sonia Hernandez-Plaza).
- 11. Coorganizer of the Session Diversity in health: Needs and barriers in access to healthcare at III

Jornadas de Ciência Sociais e Humanas em Saúde, ESTSL, September 2012(with Beatriz Padilla and Sonia Hernandez-Plaza).

- 12. Coorganizer of the Session Diversity in health: strategies to promote equity in healthcare at *III Jornadas de Ciência Sociais e Humanas em Saúde*, ESTSL, September 2012 (with Beatriz Padilla and Sonia Hernandez-Plaza).
- 13. Coorganizer of the *Monthly academic seminars* of the European Research Centre on Migration and Ethnic Relations (ERCOMER), Faculty of Social Sciences, University of Utrecht, between September 2007 and July 2009 (with Marcel Coenders, Anca Minescu and Borja Martinovic)
- 14. Coorganizer of the *Conference (Des)Encontros no Casal*, Faculty of Psychology and Educational Sciences, University of Coimbra, May 2001 (with Eliana Costa, Adriana Silva and Nuno Craveiro).

10.2. Invited oral presentations

- 1. De Freitas C, A bottmom-up approach: community-based research, at *Improving the wellbeing of migrants in Andalucia*, organized by the Government of Andalucia, Spain, November 2016.
- 2. De Freitas C, "Citizen participation in health. Promoting the involvement of groups at risk of exclusion", at *Workshop PROCOMDI: Avances de Investigación II*, Faculty of Psychology, University of Seville, Spain, March 2013.
- 3. De Freitas C, "Citizen participation", at *Preparatory Seminar of the Forum Citizen for the Social State National Health Service*, Associação 25 de Abril, Portugal December 2012.
- 4. De Freitas C, "Opportunities for change: a Cape-verdean voice in Dutch mental health care services", at Seminar + Health, Gender and Migration, School of Nursing University of Coimbra/GRAAL, Portugal, April 2012.
- 5. De Freitas "Participation by migrant users in mental health care: successes and challenges", at *Round Table Equity and health in diversity communities: a shared challenge*, Faculty of Psychology, University of Sevilla, Spain, 2012.
- 6. De Freitas C, "Civil society, CSOs and the state: Reflections from the field of migrant health in Europe", at COST Action Health and Social Care for Migrants and Ethnic Minorities in Europe (HOME) Workshop The role of NGOs and CSOs in health care for migrants and ethnic minorities, Portugal, 2009.
- 7. De Freitas C "Cape Verdeans and mental health in the Netherlands", at *International Conference*The multiple faces of Cape Verdean migration organised by the High Commissioner for Immigration and Intercultural Dialogue (ACIDI, I.P.), the Portuguese Institute for Development

- (IPAD, MNE), and the Institute of Cape Verde Communities (IC), Cape Verde, 2007.
- 8. De Freitas C, "User involvement in mental health: The Netherlands", at *Joint Meeting of the WHO-HPH Task Force on Migrant-Friendly and Culturally Competent Health Care and COST Action Health and Social Care for Migrants and Ethnic Minorities in Europe (HOME)*, England, 2007.
- 9. De Freitas C, "The user movement in mental health in the Netherlands", at *Seminar The inclusion* of users in mental health care organised by the Municipal Secretary of Health of Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, 2007.
- 10.De Freitas C, "Migrants' health situation in Portugal", at *Work Session Immigrants living in extreme conditions* of the European Parliament, Belgium, 2003.

10.3. International oral presentations

- 1. Silva, SP, De Freitas C, Silva S. Como envolver o público numa pesquisa sobre doação de gâmetas? Repensar metodologias na ciência cidadã em regimes de anonimato, 3rd Conference of the Thematic Section Knowledge, Science and Tecnology of the Portuguese Sociological Association, 7 and 8 September 2017, Braga, Portugal
- Amorim M, Alves E, Samorinha C, De Freitas C, Kelly-Irving M, Silva S. Couple as the unit of analysis: ethics in sampling and data collection drawn from a Portuguese mixed-methods study, 21st International Epidemiological Association World Congress of Epidemiology, 19-22 August 2017, Saitama, Japan.
- 3. Amorim M, Alves E, Samorinha C, **De Freitas C** and Silva S. Sampling procedures on mixed-methods research with parental couples: challenges from joint interviews, *7th Conference of the European Survey Research Association (ESRA)*, 17-21 July 2017, Lisbon, Portugal.
- 4. **De Freitas C**, Samorinha C, Lisi C, Silva S. Public involvement in health policy-making: an exclusive practice? International Sociological Association International Conference on Democracy and Participation in the 21rst Century, 12-15 July, Lisbon, Portugal.
- 5. Silva SP, De Freitas C and Silva S. Ethical and methodological challenges to public engagement in research about anonymous gamete donation: rethinking citizen science, *International Sociological Association - International Conference on Democracy and Participation in the 21rst Century*, 12-15 July, Lisbon, Portugal.
- 6. **De Freitas** C, Samorinha C, Ingleby D & García-Ramírez. Migrant and ethnic minority involvement in healthcare policy and community interventions: a scoping review, *EUPHA's 6th European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health*, 23-25 July 2016, Oslo, Norway.

7. Samorinha C, Machado H, **De Freitas C**, Amorim M, Silva S. A public health approach to patient-centredness in embryo research. *9th European Public Health Conference* (EUPHA), 9-12 November 2016, Vienna, Austria.

- 8. **De Freitas C**, Ferreira V, Silva S, Videira P, Morava E, Jaeken J. Patient and public participation in needs assessment and innovation linked to rare diseases. Pre-Conference "Patient participation in health care research and innovation". *9th European Public Health Conference* (EUPHA), 9 November 2016, Vienna, Austria.
- 9. Silva S, Samorinha C, Baía I, Silva SP, **De Freitas C**, Alves E, Machado H, Pereira IS. A (in)disponibilidade de dadores: como contornar as dificuldades?. *XXXIV Jornadas Internacionais de Estudos da Reprodução*, 7-8 October 2016, Tróia, Portugal.
- 10. Alves E, **De Freitas C**, Amorim M, Silva S. Parental involvement in care in Neonatal Intensive Care Units. European Sociological Association Mid-Term Conference *New directions in health care work and organisations*, 18-20 Maio 2016, Lisboa, Portugal.
- 11. Samorinha C, **De Freitas** C, Machado H, Silva S. Patient-centred care in embryo donation for research. European Sociological Association Mid-Term Conference *New directions in health care work and organisations*, 18-20 Maio 2016, Lisboa, Portugal.
- 12. Baía I, Amorim M, Silva S, **De Freitas C**, Alves E. Parenting very preterm infants and stress in Neonatal Intensive Care Units. 8th European Public Health Conference, 14-17 Outubro 2015, Milan, Itália.
- 13.**De Freitas C**, Ingleby D & Garcia-Ramirez. "Levering change: barriers to and facilitators of migrant user involvement in healthcare governance", 5th EUPHA European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health, June 2014, Granada, Spain.
- 14. Garcia-Ramirez M, **De Freitas C** & Ingleby D. Bringing migrant and ethnic minority users' perspectives into health policy and health care: The ADAPT project, *14th Biennial conference of The Society for Community Research and Action* June 2013, Miami, USA.
- 15.**De Freitas C**. Beyond the usual suspects: increasing the representation of disadvantaged minorities in health participatory spaces in times of crisis. European Sociological Association 11th Conference *Crisis, Critique and Change*, August 2013, Turin, Italy.
- 16.**De Freitas C.** Fostering inclusive citizen participation in health: the engagement of minority groups in healthcare governance, European Sociological Association 11th Conference *Crisis, Critique and Change*, August 2013, Turin, Italy.
- 17. **De Freitas C**. Determinantes da participação de utentes de minorias desfavorecidas em saúde mental, *V Congresso Ibero-americano de Pesquisa Qualitativa em Saúde*, September 2012, Lisbon, Portugal.

18.**De Freitas C**. Mobilising, empowering and involving disenfranchised groups in health care. 5th Annual European Public Health Association Preconference - Integrating the patient's perspective in public health and health care, October 2012, St. Julian, Malta.

- 19.**De Freitas C**. Migrant health in Portugal: Past. Present! Future?,3rd IMISCOE Cluster B5 Workshop, October 2006, Lisbon, Portugal.
- 20.**De Freitas C**. Participating: until how far? Mapping migrant and ethnic minorities' participation in mental health care in the Netherlands, 2nd Annual IMISCOE Conference, March 2005, Osnabrück, Germany.
- 21. **De Freitas C.** 'Health has no borders': Cape Verdean immigrants in the Netherlands and the transnational quest for health care across Europe, *International Conference on Cape Verdean Migration and Diaspora*, April 2005, Lisbon, Portugal.
- 22.**De Freitas C.** Cape Verdean immigrants in the Netherlands and the transnational quest for health care across Europe, 2nd IMISCOE Cluster B5 Workshop, March 2005, Lisbon, Portugal.

10.4. Poster presentations

- Silva SP, De Freitas C, Baía I, Samorinha C, Silva S. Políticas centradas nas pessoas na doação de gâmetas: contributos do debate socioético. V Congresso Nacional de Saúde Pública, Porto, 16-17 February 2017.
- 2. **De Freitas C**, Ingleby D & García-Ramírez M. Sensitivity to diversity in public and patient involvement policy: A comparison of 40 countries, *EUPHA's 6th European Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health*, Oslo, September 2016.
- 3. Baía I, Samorinha C, Machado H, Alves E, **De Freitas C**, Silva SP, Silva S. Geopolitical and gender inequalities in the transnational flow of gametes. 8th ASPHER Young Researcher's Forum, 9th European Public Health Conference, 10 November 2016, Vienna, Austria.
- 4. Ferreira V, **De Freitas** C, Videira P, Krasnewich D, Morava E, Silva S & Jaeken J. Needs and opportunities from Congenital Disorders of Glycosylation: Results from the first world think tanks, *RE(ACT) International Congress on Research of Rare and Orphan Diseases*, 2016, Barcelona, Spain.
- 5. **De Freitas C**. Engaging minorities: facilitators of involvement by ethnic minority users in mental health participatory spaces, *4th Conference on Migrant and Ethnic Minority Health in Europe*, 2012, Milan, Italy.
- 6. **De Freitas C**. Migrant health: Care delivery, intercultural communication and user participation, Dilemmas of diversity: *ERCOMER Jubilee Conference*, 2009, Utrecht, the Netherlands.

7. **De Freitas C**. Migrant user participation in mental health: The case of Cape Verdean immigrants in the Netherlands, *Congress Gekleurde gekte: 25 jaar interculturalisatie in de GGZ*, 2009, Rotterdam, the Netherlands.

10.6. National oral presentations

- Silva SP, De Freitas C, Baía I, Samorinha C, Silva S. Socioethical debates about gamete donation in Portugal: questions (un)answered. 10^a edição IJUP – Encontro de Investigação Jovem da Universidade do Porto, FMUP, 8-10 February 2017.
- 2. Mudaliar J, Silva S, Mohammed J, **De Freitas C**. Crosscutting enabling factors of a Community Health Worker Program in the Fiji Islands: A qualitative study of stakeholders' perspectives. 10^a edição IJUP Encontro de Investigação Jovem da Universidade do Porto, FMUP, 8-10 fevereiro 2017.
- 3. **De Freitas** C. *Do estigma à inclusão: motivações para a participação cidadã na promoção da saúde mental*, VIII Congresso Português de Sociologia, Évora, 2014.
- De Freitas C. A participação de utentes migrantes enquanto factor promotor de maior equidade em saúde, III Jornadas de Ciência Sociais e Humanas em Saúde - Saúde: vias de reflexão, 2012, Lisboa.

Porto, 29 January 2018.

Thirdre forme fouresde fristers